City of Seattle Invitation to Bid/Request for Proposal 
Addendum 

Updated on:  July 28, 2014

The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal #FAS-3318 titled Security Guard Services/Patrol for the City Civic Campus released on June 25, 2014.  The due date and time for responses remains August 1, 2014; 2:00PM (Pacific).  This addendum includes both questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers, and revisions to the RFP. This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a bid/proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	07/21/2018
	07/23/2014
	City Initiated
	
	The City has extended the due date to August 1, 2014; 2:00PM (Pacific) to allow time to answer questions submitted by proposers.

	2
	06/27/2014
	07/23/2014
	The second requirement is so unique that a company would have to have provided service to the City of Seattle Civic Campus in the past to qualify.  

That seems unduly restrictive to us.  Is there any way this requirement could be reviewed and perhaps loosened?  We would understand if a bidder receives points for such experience (as long as that experience took place in Seattle) but to exclude those without that experience from even bidding does not seem to be very inclusive.
	The experience need not be in Seattle or the State of Washington. Company must have three (3) years of consecutive experience in a multi-use and multi-tenant facility with at least 50% government occupants and a minimum of 300,000 square feet.   The 300,000 square feet facility/campus must be contiguous, and not piecemealed.
The Civic Campus is a unique multi-tenant facility and we want the successful company to have 3 years’ experience both as a company and in a comparable setting.  
	

	3
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	What are the current pay rates for each position?
	The current billing rates to the City are available at:
The current billing rates to the City are available at: 

http://web6.seattle.gov/FAS/SummitPan/R296/R296.Result.aspx?PoStatus=2&SearchType=3&SearchTerm=0000002444 .  Actual wage rates are not available.

	

	4
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Who is the current contractor providing security service and how long have they held this contract?
	The contract being replaces has been held by Olympic Security Services since 4/16/2009. 
	

	5
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Is there a desired wage that the City would like to pay employees?
	No
	

	6
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Is there a minimum amount established for employer-provided insurance and benefits?
	No
	

	7
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Will vacation time be billable?
	No
	

	8
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Will bi-weekly billing be considered (payment terms may still be net 30)?
	No
	

	9
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Is there an additional requirement for specific site training or minimum training? How long?
	Site specific Training is currently set at 40 hours. Minimum pre-assignment training and testing as outlined in WAC 308-18-300 and RCW 18.170 and minimum post- assignment training and annual refresher training as outlined in WAC 308-18-305 and RCW 18.170 are not included in the site specific training.
	

	10
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Is training billable?
	No
	

	11
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Are the incumbents trained to the required standards?
	Yes
	

	12.
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Is there an MWBE requirement?
	No
	

	13.
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Is the contractor responsible for employee parking?  If so, what is the cost?
	Yes, approximately $30 per month per space.
	

	14.
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Will office space be provided? If so, at which location(s)?
	Office space is provided at Seattle Municipal Tower and at City Hall
	

	15.
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Please clarify how breaks are handled? For Example, are one-man posts relieved by a breaker?  For two-man posts, are they allowed to take lunches and restroom breaks, leaving one man on post?
	One-man posts can be relieved by a breaker.  Two-man posts, are allowed to take lunches and restroom breaks, leaving one man on post.
	

	16.
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Will responding companies be allowed to submit a base cost plus options including separate charges for healthcare, management, and training?
	No
	

	17.
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	What is the annual mileage for each patrol vehicle in use for this account historically?
	Vehicles are rarely, if ever required.   Vehicles are supplied by the vendor.  There are no estimated numbers of miles per year, since they are rarely required.
	

	18.
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Please confirm that pass through billing of costs incurred for the required vaccinations

(Page 5, 1.33) will be allowed.
	The TB vaccination is required.  All others are encouraged.  Pass through is only allowed on the TB vaccine.
	

	19.
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Though the minimum requirements do not state that all experience be in the state of Washington, there were several mandatory questions (contained in the Proposal Response Instructions) requesting information on work performed specifically in Washington (e.g. Questions #4, 24, and 31, and Section 3, 5. Access Control Experience). Please confirm that relative experience from locations other than the State of Washington will be compliant and that the required experience is NOT limited to the State of Washington.
	Questions #4, 24, and 31, and Section 3, 5. Access Control Experience).  Relative experience from locations other than the State of Washington will be compliant and that the required experience is NOT limited to the State of Washington.
	

	20.
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	With respect to the Retention of Incumbents required by Executive Order 06-04, Will the City provide incumbent information (tenure, wages, benefits) prior to the required 10 working days specified so that bidders can decide if honoring seniority can be cost­ effectively included as well as additional staffing needs based on existing headcount?
	Per the RFP, the vendor that holds the contract shall provide the name, address, phone, hire date and employment classification of each covered employee to the successor vendor within 10 working days after the notice of contract termination.  It is up to the vendor if they can provide the information sooner.
	

	21.
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	The radios specified are no longer available from the vendor and the vendor's recommended models vary greatly in pricing based on functionality required. Please clarify the specifications of the required radio devices.
	An equivalently featured radio is allowed.  Radios must be able to interface with both sites and other communication devices being used by other internal staff i.e. janitors, building management, facilities operations, etc.
	

	22.
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Will the City provide an operating frequency for the radios or is the vendor required to purchase? If the City will provide the frequency that the radios will operate on, is the band VH F or UHF?
	Frequency and bandwidth will be disclosed upon award.  Vendor purchases own bandwidth. 
	

	23.
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	With respect to the required vaccinations. The Chicken Pox vaccine is required of individuals who have not contracted Chicken Pox previously, will verbal acknowledgment be sufficient or is there a requirement to test those not receiving the vaccination for conclusive evidence?
	Acknowledgement will be sufficient except for TB.
	

	24
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	The new Seattle Minimum Wage requires employers to comply and pay the minimum wage of at least $11.00 by April 1, 2015. Has the City considered this factor in requiring bids not exceed the $1.6M?
	The Buyer may exempt request for price increases/decreases for extraordinary conditions that could not have been known by either party at the time of bid or other circumstances beyond the control of both parties, as determined in the opinion of the Buyer.
	

	25.
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	What Union is representing the Seattle Security Officers working under this contract?
	National League of Justice and Security Professionals
	

	26.
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	The living wage ordinance has 2 pay schedules one for employers that contribute to an employee's health coverage and one where employer does not contribute. If the Employer offers health insurance that the employer pays a portion of the cost but some employee's elect not to participate, for the non- participating employees which pay schedule applies?
	The City will evaluate the wage rate that includes employers’ contribution to the employee's health coverage.
	

	27
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Must health insurance be provided to less than full-time employees? If yes, what level of hours/week requires such contribution?  Also, for the employees working below the stated hour limit (if one exists) are they subject to higher minimum pay schedule than employees qualifying for health insurance?
	There are no benefit requirements outside of the Equal Benefits compliance.  Those companies that respond with benefits at higher levels and/or lower cost to their employees will receive higher scores for those criteria.
	

	28
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	There seems to be inconsistency between wage escalation minimum wage ordinance and the terms specified  in the sample contract on page 4,price increases:

The Vendor is to demonstrate:

•
That wage and benefit increases are within the changes to the CPI Index for King County or other pricing index appropriate to the particular service herein;

The issue is that the minimum wage increases are very likely more than the CPI for Ki ng County; example from 2015 to 2016 minimum  pay increases from $11/hour to $13/hour or 18.2% and it is extremely unlikely the CPI will be more than 3%. The question is whether Seattle will honor rate increases to cover requested rate increase.
	The Buyer may exempt request for price increases/decreases for extraordinary conditions that could not have been known by either party at the time of bid or other circumstances beyond the control of both parties, as determined in the opinion of the Buyer.
	

	29
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	In Section 5, Specifications and Scope of Work on page 4, the requirements for the Justice Center:  600 and 610 5th Avenue, Seattle, WA states that the “X-ray screening operation is managed by the Seattle Municipal Courts.   The Seattle Police Department controls screening at the 610 5th Ave entrance.”  Would the City please clarify who is responsible for operating the screening equipment for the 600 5th Avenue entrance, is it the contractor, the Seattle police, or the Municipal Courts?  If the contractor is responsible for screening personnel and belonging entering the facility through this entrance, is training of new officers the responsibility of the contractor?
	It is mentioned strictly for informational purposes. X-ray screening operation at the Justice Center is managed by the Seattle Municipal Courts and is a separate contract not included in this RFP.  
	

	30
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 5, Specifications and Scope of Work on page 4 addresses the Labor Harmony requirements of the City.  Are the current employees represented under a collective bargaining agreement with a labor union?  As companies are required to honor the existing economic conditions of a collective bargaining agreement, including an employee’s tenure, if the employees are represented by a union, would the City please provide all contractors with a copy of the existing CBA in order for offerors’ to comply with conditions of the CBA, as well as to be able to design a labor harmony plan to meet this requirement?
	Copy of the CBA submitted by the current vendor is available through public records request.
	

	31
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	In Section One, question 4 asks for offerors to “describe their experience in preparing for large, high security events (local, state, national, and/or international) within Washington within the last three (3) years.”  In the previous solicitation, the City modified this question to allow offerors to expand on their experience outside of the State of Washington.  Would the City please revise this question to allow offerors to demonstrate their experience with large, high security events throughout the United States?
	
	Delete “within Washington”  Replace with throughout the United States.

	32
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	In Section One, question 7 asks for offerors to “list all contracts comparable in size and scope your firm has successfully performed and all current contacts that are comparable in size and scope over the last three years.”  Would the City please clarify this requirement?  Is the first part looking for all contracts comparable in size and scope the firm has successfully performed throughout its history of operations or just for the last three years?  Additionally, is the City requesting contact information for each contract?
	Current contracts and those comparable in size and scope over the last three years.  
	

	33
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 1.4 outlines the physical and mental requirements for the security force.  Would the City please clarify if it is the expectation of the City that all security officers have completed a physical exam by a medical professional to determine physical and mental fitness prior to assignment to the contract?  And if so, is it the City’s expectation that the cost of the exams is to be borne by the contractor?
	A physical exam is not required but personnel must meet the physical requirements of the specification.  
	

	34
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 1.12 states that the contractor shall “have a ready source of qualified individuals to perform the function and administer the employee selection and scheduling, billing, and administrative functions of the contract”.  Is it the City’s expectation that the account managers assigned to the program are not responsible for the scheduling of personnel assigned to the program, nor other administrative functions such as payroll or billing?  If so, is it the City’s expectation that the contractor has a dedicated administrative support function for this program or is it acceptable for the individual to have responsibilities outside of the City’s program?
	Administrative management and support functions (billing, payroll, uniforms and equipment, etc.) can be externally managed.  Workforce requirements apply to supplemental resourcing.
	

	35
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 2.1 states that “At present there are two Account Managers, one for the Seattle Municipal Tower (SMT), and one for the Civic Campus proper.”  Are two account manager required by the City under the new contract?  
	Yes.
	

	36
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 2.7 states that the account manager(s) shall “provide annual training of all assigned security officers and supervisors on FAS’s emergency procedures and plans”. Is there a minimum amount of hours for the annual training of officers?
	There are no minimums other than as defined in Question #9 above.
	

	37
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 2.8, states that the account manager(s) shall “provide each security officer with specialized training relating to the security requirements of this account”.  Would the City please clarify what type of specialized training is required?  Additionally, is there a minimum amount of hours required for the specialized training?
	Currently annual training includes arrest procedures, defensive tactics, CPR, First aid certification and other types as identified.  Training times are determined based on needs and costs are assumed by the contractor.
	

	38
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Additionally, Section 6.1.4 states that the account manager shall “develop a training program and coordinate all training requirements for security personnel assigned to this account—and update the program on a regular basis.”  Are there a minimum number of on-going training hours for the security force expected by the City?
	See Questions 36 and 37.
	

	39
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 2.12, outlines the normal shift time.  Would the City please confirm that shift 2 is a typographical error?
	
	Shift #2 is a typographical error and should read 0800 instead of 7800

	40
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 3.8 identifies additional contractor provided equipment, to include handcuffs, pepper spray, and PPE.  Are handcuffs and pepper spray issued to all officers?  And if not, would the City please identify which locations require the security force to carry handcuffs and pepper spray?
	All are required to carry handcuffs and pepper spray.
	

	41
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 6.1.6 states that the account manager must “provide security management for events in the Mayor’s Office, Council chambers, and for other high profile events that may be held in the Civic Campus buildings or the Seattle Municipal Tower.”  Would the City please disclose how many events were held in 2013 and 2012?  Additional would the City please disclose the average time for each event?
	No estimate is available.  One week minimum for known events.  Some events are business driven and unknown until day of or hours before.
	

	42
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 6.5.3 outlines the duties of the loading dock officer, and states that the offices will “not leave the loading dock until relieved at the loading dock desk (except in emergency situations).”  Would the City please clarify who provides relief to the loading dock officer?
	Other on duty personnel.
	

	43
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 6.7 identifies various types of special coverage events.  Would the City please disclose how many special coverage events were hosted in 2013 and 2012 and the average duration of the events?
	See question #41
	

	44
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 7.1 states that “the City of Seattle has a business need for a low turnover of security personnel.  The vendor must ensure the stability of its workforce.”  Would the City please disclose the annual turnover on this program for the current security force for 2013 and 2012?
	Per Olympic’s last proposal response, 27%
	

	45
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 10.1.6 states that “FAS will not pay overtime for short notice requests.  Therefore, vendors should consider this factor in the proposed billing rates.”  Would the City please define a short notice request?  Is it less than 24 hours of notification or some other period?  Additionally, would the City please disclose how many short notice requests were given in 2013 and 2012?
	We do occasionally have needs that arise such as a special council meeting or community hearing that may require additional staffing and we give as much advance notice as possible for those additional staff requests, usually a minimum of 24 hours but those additional requests have not been tracked.
	

	46
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 12 outlines the emergency staffing requirements for the program.  Would the City please disclose how many times emergency staffing was required in 2013 and 2012?
	There have been no instanced where Section 12 was invoked.  All events have been coordinated with significant advance lead.
	

	47
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Section 14 outlines various on-call security requirements, to include vehicle patrols.  Would the City please clarify if a vehicle is required as part of the normal program?  If vehicle patrols are only required on an “as needed basis”, would the City please disclose how many times the City requested a vehicle patrol in 2013 and 2012?
	Vehicles were not requested at all from our current contractor.
	

	48
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	As employers are preparing for the implementation of the Affordable Care Act, would the City please provide guidance as to how offerors should account for changes to medical benefits during the life of the contract, which is a 5 year program with 1 five year option period?  Will the City allow the contract to directly pass through the costs rather than estimating the impact?  Additionally, if the costs are significantly higher than estimated, will the contractor be allowed to adjust their bill rates to accurately reflect their costs?
	The Buyer may exempt request for price increases/decreases for extraordinary conditions that could not have been known by either party at the time of bid or other circumstances beyond the control of both parties, as determined in the opinion of the Buyer.
	

	49
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Would the City please disclose to what percentage is the current incumbent staffed in relation to the required post hours? This information is necessary to determine the cost of recruitment and training for any staffing shortages.
	100%
	

	50
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Would the City please clarify how meal and comfort breaks are provided?  Is relief provided by the patrol officers or supervisors?
	Could be provided by the patrol officers or supervisors.  Usually provided by on duty personnel.
	

	51
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Are there any posts which are self-relieving?  For example, most roving officers are self-relieving while fixed posts require a relief officer.
	Correct, most roving officers are self-relieving while fixed posts require a relief officer.
	

	52
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	Does the City provide any on-site space for the account manager(s) or security force to be used for breaks, staging, housing on-site records, etc?
	Yes.
	

	53
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	The current two account managers one for the Seattle Municipal Tower (SMT) and one for the Civic Campus.

•         What is the current rate of pay per hour? Each manager.
•         How long have the account managers worked for the city. (under other security companies)
	Actual wage rates are not available.
The combined experience of the two current managers exceeds 11 years
	

	54
	07/15/2014
	07/23/2014
	The current Control room and Technical Specialist for City Hall.

•         What is the current rate of pay per hour?
•         How long has the current Control Room and Technical Specialist worked for the city. (under other security companies)
	Actual wage rates are not available.
The current Control Room and Technical Specialist worked for the city under the security company for 5.5 years.
	

	55
	07/22/2014
	07/28/2014
	Regarding the “Pricing Offer Sheet”, it states that the “Control Room and Technical Specialist for City Hall” is estimated at 4,160 annual hours.  Yet in the Scope of Work it states 2,080 annual hours.  Which one is correct?
	Seattle Municipal Tower has a Central Monitoring Function—Fourth Floor with three shifts filled by Security Officers. 

City Hall also has a Central Monitoring Function (control Room) L2 City Hall with two shifts filled by Security Officers and one shift by the Control Room/Technical Specialist who also serves as Assistant Manager by backing up the Manager.
These posts are 24/7
	Revise Offer Sheet, Item #2, Estimated yearly hours to read 2,080.

	56
	07/28/2014
	07/28/2014
	Can you provide the required hours per location or the complete schedule for each location so we can identify the employees on shift per day?
	See page 5, Specifications numbered 1.10, 2.1, 2.12, 6.2, 6.3, 6.4, 6.5 and 6.6 for supporting detail on staffing and hours.  Approximately 40 combination FTE and PT depending on how staffed with 24/7 coverage.  
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